
 

 

 

Request for Proposals for 

Scheduling Optimization and Staffing Analysis  

ADDENDUM No. 1 

September 14, 2021 
 

The City of Naples Airport Authority Request for Proposals for Scheduling Optimization and Staffing 
Analysis is amended by the following clarifications or additions. If any provisions of this Addendum 
conflict with the existing RFP, then this Addendum will control and is hereby made a part of the RFP 
documents. All other provisions in the RFP remain in effect as previously published. 

Proposers shall acknowledge receipt of any and all addenda in their transmittal letter. 

 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

Q1.  The legal advertisement summary indicates that the project is “to evaluate workload demand 
and recommend staffing and scheduling for the NAA Operations Department”.  In the more 
detailed scope of service, the narrative does not limit to only the Operations Department, just want 
to confirm the scope of work.  Is it limited to the Operations Department or are other units of NAA 
included? Additionally, can you indicate which functions / units on the provided organizational 
chart are intended to be covered by this assessment? 

 
A1. The scope is limited to the portion of the Aviation department under the FBO Services 

Director. The Authority may elect, at a later date, to request from the selected vendor a 
quote for additional scope work to evaluate the staff under the Operations & Maintenance 
Director. 

 
Q2.  Can you provide more details regarding the specific services provided by the Operations 
Department at the Naples Airport? 

 
A2. The primary services the FBO Services area provides includes both outside and inside 

services. For example, marshalling, towing and fueling aircraft, checking proper oil levels, 



 

tire pressure and lavatory service, luggage handling, catering order management, assistance 
with flight planning, ramp side vehicle pick-up/drop-off, courtesy cars, catering, car rental, 
hotel accommodations and any other needs customers and pilots may have. 

  
Q3.  Can a listing of positions or a summary of the number of employees by position title be 
provided to provide respondents with a better understanding of the current number of employees 
and positions to be reviewed and evaluated? Can you provide more details regarding the specific 
services provided by the Operations Department at the Naples Airport?? 

 
A3. Please see table below for list of positions, number of positions for each job and full-time or 

part-time status. 
 

Position Title 
No. of 
Positions 

Full-Time/ Part-
Time 

Admin - FBO Reception - seasonal 2 FT 
Customer Service Coordinator 3 FT 

Customer Service Rep - Seasonal 2 PT 
Customer Service Representatives 9 FT 

Customer Service Representative I, Part-Time 1 PT 
Dispatcher 3 FT 

Greeter - Seasonal  1 PT 
Greeter - Full-Time 2 FT 

Line Service Supervisor 3 FT 
Line Technician - Seasonal Part-Time 3 PT 

Line Technician - Part-Time 2 PT 
Line Technician 35 FT 

Quality Control Coordinator 1 FT 
Ramp Assistant, Full-Time 3 FT 

Ramp Assistant - Part-Time Year Round 2 PT 
Ramp Assistant - Seasonal 13 PT 

Ramp Assistant - Temporary, Part-Time 4 PT 
Total Positions 89  

 
 

Q4.  Is there a desired / targeted completion date or are you looking for consultants to provide the 
most appropriate schedule based upon the work to be performed? 
 

A4. The Authority is requesting each respondent include schedule of work with completion date. 
 

Q5.  Please provide the name and software version of your current scheduling platform, if you have 
one. If you have one, are you expecting this to be replaced with this bid? 
 

A5. The Authority is currently using ScheduleAnywhere which is linked to ADP WorkforceNow.   
The Authority is open to considering other platforms. 



 

 
Q6.  Does your budget support a full-time project/program manager? If yes, for how long? 
 

A6. Respondents should include information on their project manager as described in Section V. 
Content of Responses in the RFP. 

 
Q7.   Do you expect the employees to have access to our findings?  
 
 A7. The Authority expects to share findings with employees.  
 
Q8.  We assume that the scope of this study includes direct employees, excluding contractors, is this 
a valid assumption? 
 
 A8. Yes, this study includes only direct employees. 
 
Q9.  What proportion of the employed staff are full time employees? 
 
 A9.  See table in Answer 3. 
 
Q10.  What employee categories and/or departments primarily use a look ahead schedule vs mostly 
on call? 
 
 A10.  The Authority currently has no on call program. 
 
Q11.  What employee types currently use the most overtime? 
 
 A11. Line Technicians 
 
Q12.  Are there any specific areas or types of employees the Authority has identified as primary 
opportunities for overtime reduction? 
 
 A12.  Line Technicians, Ramp Assistants and Customer Service Representatives 
 
Q13.  Given that public safety (Fire, Sheriff) employees are shared with the City of Naples and 
Collier County, what percentage of that staff is dedicated to airport operations? 
 

A13.  There are none. 
 
Q14.  What constraints exist on optimizing the employee schedules? Examples may include union 
constraints and regulatory constraints. 
 

A14. The primary constraint is the high fluctuation of the seasonal operational needs and peak 
days throughout the year (e.g. holidays, major local events, etc.) The are regulatory 
constraints by the DOL and FLSA. There are no unions. Depending on the position, there 



 

may be operational procedure requirements (e.g. a Line Technician must have a spotter when 
moving aircraft in specific situations). 

 
Q15.  Please describe disaster response responsibilities of the Airport Authority. 
 

A15.  In coordination with local fire/police, responsibilities of the NAA include responding to 
natural disasters, aircraft incidents/accidents or security threats. While the FBO staff 
functions are limited, all are considered critical employees of the NAA for incident 
response. 

 
Q16.  Please describe the mutual aide responsibilities if any, of the Airport Authority. 
 
 A16.  None. 
 
Q17.  How does the Authority get involved if at all with the scheduling of TSA and CBP employees? 
 
 A17. There is no involvement by the Authority in scheduling TSA and CBP employees. 
 
Q18.  What HR and payroll system do you use? 
 
 A18. ADP Workforce Now is used for HR and Payroll. 
 
Q19.  Do you use a system to dispatch when such is needed, airport staff (a CAD system, for 
example)? 
 
 A19.  X-1 FBO is utilized for dispatching staff when services are needed. 
 
Q20.  What electronic data sources are available to support the statistical analysis? What paper 
data sources are available to support the statistical analysis? 
 
 A20.  Authority staff will provide all requested statistical data in digital or paper format. 
 
Q21.  What, if any impact does the renovation of the General Aviation terminal have on employee 
workload and scheduling? 
 
 A21.  No impact. 
 
Q22.  Are you guys allowed to tell us the maximum budget- we want to come well under it! 
 
 A22. The budget has not and will not be established in advance of receipt of proposals. 

 


